
 

 

 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

 
A Meeting of East Hampshire District Council will be held in the Council Chamber, 
Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX on Thursday, 23 September 2021 at 6.00 pm 
when your attendance is requested to consider the business set out in the agenda 
below.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Gill Kneller 
Chief Executive 

 
 

   

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 (Items open to the Public)  
 
1  Chairman's Announcements   

 
To receive any reports the Chairman wishes to make. 
 
2  Apologies for Absence   

 
To receive and record any apologies for absence. 
 
3  Declarations of Interest   

 
To receive and record any declarations of interest. 
 
4  Confirmation of Previous Minutes  (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 16 June 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

5  Public Questions (Standing Order 27.5)   
 

To receive questions from, and provide answers to, the public, provided they have 
been submitted in accordance with the requirements of Standing Order 27.5, which 
is to deal with any public questions notified no later than 12 noon three working days 
before the meeting and in accordance with the Council’s protocol for public 
questions. 
 
6  East Hampshire District Local Plan: Spatial Strategy Preferred Option  

(Pages 3 - 22) 
 

It is recommended that Council: 
1  approve the preferred option (Option 2) for the spatial strategy to feature 

in the emerging East Hampshire Local Plan, and 

2  note the different spatial options for the EHDC Local Plan 2017-2038 

 
7  Cabinet and Committee Recommendations  (Pages 23 - 40) 

 
To consider the following recommendations to Council: 
 
Standards Committee – 13 September 2021 

 
Appointment of the Independent Person Panel 
 
“RESOLVED that Council: 

a. note the recruitment process of the Independent Persons (IPs) 

b. be recommended to approve the appointment of Mr Andrew Kirk, Mr David 

Heck and Mr Peter Moore to an Independent Persons Remuneration 

Panel.” 

 
8  Portfolio Holder Reports to Council  (Pages 41 - 54) 

 
9  Questions under Standing Order 27.4.1   

To deal with any questions from Councillors submitted by 12 noon three working 
days before the meeting. 
 
10  Questions under Standing Order 27.4.2   

 
To deal with any urgent questions received no less than two hours prior to the start 
of the meeting and in accordance with standing order 27.4.2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

11  Appointments to Committees   
 

Recommended that an amendment to the following appointments to the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee be approved: 
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
(10) 

 
 7 Conservative 

2 Liberal Democrat 
1 Labour 

 

Chairman: Stephen Dolan (Lab) 
 
V-C: S Hunt (LD) 
 
Cons  
Arthur Agate 
Ben Bentley 
David Evans 
Graham Hill 
Malcolm Johnson 
Jonathan May 
Bill Mouland 
 
Lib Dem  
Paul Wigman 
 
Reserves 
Neville Taylor (LD) 

 

 
12  Committee Minutes   

 
To receive the minutes of the following Committees held since the last meeting of 
the Council: 
 
22 April 2021  Planning Committee 
20 May 2021  Planning Committee 
02 June 2021 Planning Policy Committee 
03 June 2021 Cabinet 
08 June 2021 Audit Committee 
09 June 2021 Extraordinary Planning Committee 
22 June 2021  Standards Committee 
 
13  Quarterly Report on Special Urgency Decisions (SO51.3)   

 
To note the following special urgency decision made: 
 
EHDC LEISURE CENTRES OPERATOR SUPPORT 
 
 

https://easthants.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=14108&optionId=0


This page is intentionally left blank



  1 
Council 

(10.6.21) 
 
 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Council held on 10 June 2021 
 
 
Present  
 
Councillor: A Carew (Chairman) 
 
Councillors: K Budden, A Agate, D Ashcroft, B Bentley, G Boxall, S Burns, J Butler, 
K Carter, T Costigan, P Davies, S Dolan, N Drew, D Evans, M Gass, A Glass, 
C Hatter, G Hill, S Hunt, M Johnson, P Langley, C Louisson, T Maroney, 
D McKinney, R Millard, R Mocatta, B Mouland, R Oppenheimer, R Platt, S Pond 
(Vice-Chairman), N Taylor, P Wigman, A Williams and E Woodard 
 
 
1 Chairman's Announcements  

 
The Chairman welcomed Cllr Sear, Bramshott & Liphook and Cllr Hanrahan, 
Grayshott to the Council and farewell to Cllr Denton and James Harris, Deputy 
Democratic Services Officer.  The Chairman attended the Mayor of Winchester 
Civic Service at Winchester Cathedral. 
 

2 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr Matthews, Cllr May, Cllr Moon, Cllr 
Schillemore, Cllr Tennyson and Cllr Thomas. 
 

3 Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest from the members present. 
 

4 Confirmation of Previous Minutes  
 
Proposed by Cllr Williams and seconded by Cllr Hill it was RESOLVED that the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 29 April 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

5 Public Questions (Standing Order 27.5)  
 
Questions from members of the public received under Standing Order 27.5 
were received and answered in turn by the respective Portfolio Holders. The list 
of public questions with the associated answers are attached as Appendix A to 
these minutes. 
 

6 Cabinet and Committee Recommendations  
 
Beech Neighbourhood Development Plan 
 
Proposed by Cllr Williams and seconded by Cllr Hill it was RESOLVED that 
Members approved that the Beech Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019-Page 1

Agenda Item 4



  2 
Council 

(10.6.21) 
 
 

2028 is adopted with immediate effect, so that it becomes part of the statutory 
development plan for the area. 
 

7 Appointments to Committees and Outside Bodies as of 10 June 2021  
 
Proposed by Cllr Butler and seconded by Cllr Budden, following a vote it was 
RESOLVED that: 
 

I. the political balance of the Council, as set out in Appendix 1 to this report 
be noted;  
 

II. the appointments to the Planning Committee commencing 10 June 2021 
as set out in Appendix 2 to this report, be approved.  

 
III. the appointments to the Audit and Licensing Committees commencing 

10 June 2021 set out in Appendix 2 to this report, be approved. 
 
IV. The appointments to the Police & Crime Panel and the Parking And 

Traffic Regulations Outside London (PATROL) as set out in Appendix 2 
to this report, be approved. 

 
8 Portfolio Holder Reports to Council  

 
Portfolio Holders answered questions from Members present in the meeting.  
 
In addition, Cllr Platt agreed to ask his question of Cllr Thomas outside of the 
meeting. 
 

9 Questions under Standing Order 27.4.1  
 
There were no questions received under Standing Order 27.4.1. 
 

10 Questions under Standing Order 27.4.2  
 
There were no urgent questions received under Standing Order 27.4.2. 
 

11 Committee Minutes  
 
Proposed by Cllr Oppenheimer and seconded by Cllr Davies, following a vote, it 
was RESOLVED that the minutes of Committees held since the last meeting of 
the Council were received.  
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 6.41 pm 
 

Page 2



  

                                                                            Page  1 of 11 

 

NON-EXEMPT 

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

COUNCIL         23rd September 2021 

 

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Spatial Strategy Preferred Option 

 

FOR DECISION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Angela Glass 

Key Decision: Yes 

Report Number: EHDC/024/2021 

1. Purpose 

1.1. This report was considered by the Planning Policy Committee on 6th July 2021 and 

the below recommendation agreed for onward submission to Full Council. 

1.2. The report considers the options regarding the preferred option for the spatial 

strategy to feature in the emerging East Hampshire Local Plan.   

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are requested to note the different spatial options for the EHDC Local 

Plan 2017-2038 and approve the preferred option (Option 2) for the spatial strategy 

to feature in the emerging East Hampshire Local Plan. 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. On 14th January 2021, the Full Council approved that a hybrid approach to 

progressing the East Hampshire Local Plan would be taken which involves the 

extension of the plan period by two years (2017-2038) to ensure there is a minimum 

of 15 years from date of adoption. 

 

3.2. Following that decision, a new Local Plan timetable was published (February 2021) 

outlining the key stages in the preparation of the Local Plan. The next stage is for 

the Council to publish a draft version of the Local Plan 2038 and invite 

representations in accordance with Regulation 19. This is scheduled for April 2022.  

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



  

                                                                            Page  2 of 11 

 

3.3. Due to the time associated with the next stage of the Local Plan (Regulation 19) in 
April 2022, it is considered a preferred spatial strategy should be agreed 
beforehand to give clarity on the sites chosen to form development allocations. 
Having sites in the public domain early in the Local Plan process allows more 
detailed work to be undertaken in regard to the sites. It would allow design 
workshops with various stakeholders to commence to develop site specific policies, 
which include detailed design aspects, a requisite of Full Council agreement on 16th 
January, when approving a way forward for the Local Plan. Identifying the preferred 
spatial strategy may also assist with decisions on planning applications submitted 
ahead of this milestone.  
 

3.4. The preferred spatial strategy will set out the level and type of development that is 
considered appropriate for different places. It will set out the number of new homes 
to be built over the plan period (2017-2038) in East Hampshire (outside the South 
Downs National Park - SDNP) and the locations to be allocated as part of the 
emerging Local Plan. The local housing needs for East Hampshire are established 
at a national level, by the Government, using its standard method. There is an 
expectation that this standard method will be used for plan-making purposes, with 
no real scope for the Council to intervene in this. The overall number of homes that 
is required is subject to change over time, per the standard method, and this is 
continually monitored by planning policy officers. 
 

3.5. A total of four reasonable alternatives were identified, all meeting the identified local 
housing needs for East Hampshire (outside the SDNP), with varying levels of 
flexibility.  
 

3.6. In addition to net completions, existing planning permissions and a windfall 
allowance, the preferred spatial strategy (Option 2) includes allocation to deliver 
approximately 3,800 additional new homes up to 2038. The additional housing is 
proposed to be predominantly met through a selection of ‘core sites’ that featured 
in the Draft Local Plan (February 2019) and are still considered suitable, available 
and achievable in terms of development, as well as a handful of other sites that 
were previously shared with members of Local Plan Working Group as part of early 
engagement workshops. In addition, the preferred spatial strategy would include 
approximately 819 further dwellings associated with on-going regeneration at the 
Bordon Garrison and Louisburg sites in Whitehill & Bordon; as well as 
approximately 1,200 dwellings at a sustainable urban extension at ‘Land at 
Chawton Park Farm, Alton’. 

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

4.1. None. 

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

Background 

Page 4



  

                                                                            Page  3 of 11 

 

5.1. In January 2018 work commenced on a new Local Plan in line with the legal 

requirement to review Local Plans every 5 years. In February 2019, the first draft 

Local Plan (Regulation 18) went out for public consultation. In September 2019, a 

second public consultation was undertaken on potential large development sites. 

 

5.2. In May 2020, the Local Plan was progressing towards the next stage of plan-making 

(Regulation 19) with the Council expressing its current thinking with regards to the 

spatial strategy in June 2020. This was all in line with the Corporate Strategy’s 

second theme of a safer, healthier, and more attractive East Hampshire and 

achieving this in part through developing and delivering a new Local Plan. However, 

since this time there have been a number of changes to the context of the Local 

Plan, most significant as follows: 

 

a. Government has proposed significant changes to the planning system 

through its ‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper (2020), with a renewed 

focus on delivering net gain (not just no net detriment) in built and natural 

environments;  

b. The COVID-19 pandemic, which has created a focus on dealing with the 

economic and social recovery; 

c. The climate emergency declared by EHDC and other public bodies; 

d. Biodiversity: nutrient neutrality is now sought from development in the 

southern parishes and the Itchen/Meon catchments. There is also a 

legislative requirement for biodiversity net gain; and 

e. Delays to LP programme and national policy requirements require an 

extension to the plan period, to 2038. 

 

5.3. As a result of these changes the new preferred strategy to feature in the emerging 

Local Plan is orientated towards: 

 

a. The mitigation of and adaptation to climate change;  

b. Economic and social recovery from the pandemic;  

c. Conserving and enhancing biodiversity;  

d. Providing opportunities for building an increased number of new homes due 

to the extension of the plan period; and 

e. Supporting improvements to the quality and attractiveness of the built 

environment. 

 

Page 5



  

                                                                            Page  4 of 11 

 

5.4. In January 2021, a hybrid approach to progressing the East Hampshire Local Plan 

was approved by Full Council. Following that decision, a new Local Plan timetable 

was published (February 2021) outlining the key stages in the preparation of the 

Local Plan. The next stage is for the Council to publish a draft version of the Local 

Plan 2038 and invite representations in accordance with Regulation 19. This is 

scheduled for April 2022.  

5.5. Following Regulation 19 stage, the next stage is for the Council to formally submit 

the draft Local Plan 2038 and evidence base to the Planning Inspectorate for 

examination on behalf of the Secretary of State. An Independent Planning Inspector 

will assess the Plan against the tests of soundness contained in the NPPF, taking 

account of any representations (comments) received. If the Plan is found to be 

‘sound’, the Council may adopt the Plan as soon as practicable following receipt of 

the Inspector’s report unless the Secretary of State intervenes. This is expected by 

the end of 2023.  

5.6. It is acknowledged that the next stage of the Local Plan (Regulation 19) is not 

until April 2022. It is considered that a preferred spatial strategy should be agreed 

ahead of this milestone to enable better progression of the Local Plan and in 

particular to better inform the site allocations chosen to deliver growth. In line with 

the Full Council’s resolution (14th January 2021) to prepare a hybrid Local Plan, 

identifying a preferred spatial strategy will help focus on those aspects of the plan-

led system which are to be retained within the new planning system, in particular 

site allocation policies including more emphasis on design standards. 

5.7. The identification of sites to feature in the next stage of the Local Plan (Regulation 

19) early in the plan-making process will allow further detailed work to be 

undertaken in relation to the chosen sites. With the new planning system having an 

emphasis on design, initial workshops can commence with site promoters, 

developers and other interested parties to develop site specific policies.  

5.8. The current Local Plan, the Joint Core Strategy (JCS), was adopted in June 2014 

and is now over five years old. The Council needs to have an up to date Local 

Plan in place as soon as possible to protect local areas from ad hoc development, 

and to help maintain 5 years supply of deliverable housing land (5YHLS). Whilst 

the Council (outside the SDNP) can currently (1st April 2020) demonstrate in 

excess of 5 years supply of deliverable housing land, it is unknown what this 

position will be going forward. 

5.9. An additional benefit in identifying a preferred spatial strategy early in the plan-

making process is more clarity on the direction of proposed growth for stakeholders 

and members of the public. The supplementary clarity of knowing development 

sites to feature in the emerging Local Plan ahead of Regulation 19 stage will be a 

Page 6



  

                                                                            Page  5 of 11 

 

material planning consideration, which will provide further assistance with decisions 

on any speculative planning applications submitted ahead of this milestone. 

 

 

Conclusion 

5.10. The East Hampshire District Local Plan remains a key strategy which is intrinsically 

linked to the Corporate Plan and part of the Planning Service Business Plan. 

Getting an approved and robust Local Plan in place as swiftly as possible remains 

the fundamental objective of the Planning Policy Team. 

5.11. This advancement of the preferred spatial strategy ahead of the next stage of 

consultation (Regulation 19) is seen as necessary to better inform the site 

allocations chosen to deliver growth. Specifically, identifying sites early in the plan-

making process will allow further detailed work in relation to site allocation policies, 

allowing design-led workshops with interested parties to deliver better quality 

development for our communities. 

5.12. Additionally, agreeing the sites to feature in the emerging Local Plan ahead of 

Regulation 19 provides a further material consideration to assist determining any 

speculative applications for development that need to be determined leading up to 

the next stage. 

6. Options considered 

6.1. Following on from an extensive site assessment and the Sustainability Appraisal 

process, four reasonable alternatives were identified for the Local Plan strategy to 

meet the needs of East Hampshire (outside the SDNP) for the duration of the plan 

period (2017-2038).  

6.2. These options all involve a selection of ‘Core Sites’, namely sites that featured in 

the Draft Local Plan (2018) and were still considered suitable, available and 

achievable in terms of development, as well as a handful of additional sites that 

were previously shared and discussed with members of the Local Plan Working 

Group. These options also all involve approximately 819 dwellings associated with 

growth at Whitehill & Bordon (note a reduction in quantum from the Draft Local Plan 

due to insufficient mitigation in regard to the Wealden Heaths Phase II Special 

Protection Area (SPA)). 

6.3. Therefore, the four reasonable alternatives consist of the above, plus one of the 

following sites or collections of sites: 

 

Page 7



  

                                                                            Page  6 of 11 

 

1) A selection of ‘other sites’ – White Dirt Farm (Horndean), Land at Five Heads Road 

(Horndean), Whitedown Lane (Alton) and Land east of Old Odiham Road (Alton); 

2) Land at Chawton Park Farm (Alton); 

3) Land at Neatham Down (Alton); 

4) Two South Medstead large development sites. 

 

6.4. The above reasonable alternatives would all meet the identified local housing needs 

for East Hampshire (outside the SDNP), with differing levels of flexibility. Based on 

an assessment of site capacities and an understanding of existing housing 

commitments and completions (2017-2020), Option 1 would deliver the smallest 

number of additional new homes, whilst Options 2 and 4 would deliver the largest 

number. This means that Options 2 and 4 are the most flexible in terms of mitigating 

the risk to the soundness of the Local Plan strategy from future changes in housing 

requirements. It is important to note that the Government’s standard method for 

estimating housing requirements changes the calculation of needs on an annual 

basis, with (e.g.) the potential for increases to requirements in East Hampshire 

arising from any worsening in housing affordability between now and the Local Plan 

examination.  

6.5. There is no substitute for having an up to date Local Plan when it comes to 

protecting our local communities from speculative development and proactive 

planning to shape our places, including the provision of adequate infrastructure. 

However, the Local Plan is not expected to be adopted until 2023. The next stage 

of Local Plan preparation involves the publication of a Regulation 19 Draft Local 

Plan detailing the strategy, sites and supporting policies to guide development to 

meet East Hampshire’s (outside the SDNP) identified local housing needs. Until 

this time, the publication of a preferred strategy will go some way to assist with any 

decision making on applications submitted in advance of this stage. 

6.6. Although all reasonable alternatives would meet the identified local housing needs, 

it is considered Option 2, which includes land at Chawton Park Farm, Alton would 

best address these needs in the most sustainable and flexible manner. At this stage 

in the plan-making process, it is considered that concentrating additional growth on 

the sites comprising this option would: 

 Be compatible with national planning policy with regard to avoiding 

development in those areas at the highest risk of flooding; 

 Provide new community infrastructure at a new community at Chawton 

Park Farm, whilst delivering a significant number of affordable homes; 

contributing to biodiversity net gain; and increasing access to natural 

recreational opportunities; 

Page 8



  

                                                                            Page  7 of 11 

 

 Support on-going regeneration at Whitehill & Bordon, including through 

making best use of previously developed land, in a manner that would not 

conflict with the Council’s obligations to protect internationally designated 

sites (e.g. the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA and Woolmer Forest and 

Shortheath Common Special Areas of Conservation (SACs)); 

 Deliver additional new homes and business premises in Alton, taking 

advantage of proximity to the town’s existing facilities and services whilst 

offering the opportunity to effectively mitigate impacts on local 

infrastructure; 

 Deliver new housing in the southern parishes of Horndean, Clanfield and 

Rowlands Castle, by meeting the “duty to co-operate” with other planning 

authorities in South Hampshire in a way that would mitigate landscape 

impacts (e.g. on the setting of the SDNP); mitigate impacts on local 

biodiversity; and avoid impacts on the internationally designated sites of 

the Solent; and 

 Deliver housing and employment opportunities, including for travelling 

communities, on small sites that would support SMEs and be compatible 

with national planning policy. 

6.7. The remaining three ‘reasonable alternatives’ share many of the foregoing benefits 

with Option 2, often due to the large degree of overlap between options (i.e. the 

‘core sites’). However, the following bullet points highlight the areas where each of 

the remaining options is considered to be weaker: 

 

 Option 1: incremental expansion at Alton and Horndean would not deliver 

the same level of new community infrastructure (e.g. a new primary 

school), whilst all of the sites in this option – despite having their own 

merits – raise concerns with respect to local landscape impacts, due to 

local topography or their location on approaches to the settlements of Alton 

or Horndean  

 Option 3: potential adverse impacts on the landscape of the Wey Valley 

and the setting of Alton have been identified in respect of the site of 

Neatham Down, whilst there are concerns that the A31 – as a physical and 

psychological barrier – would hinder the integration of a new community 

with Alton.  

 Option 4: Four Marks and South Medstead offers fewer local services and 

facilities than (e.g.) Alton, with no access to the mainline railway network. A 

review of transport data has highlighted that this area is relatively car 

dependent, raising concerns that an option involving significant new 

development at South Medstead would be less responsive to the climate 

emergency. The Council’s SA Scoping Report has identified that transport 

Page 9



  

                                                                            Page  8 of 11 

 

emissions are a significant contributor to greenhouse gas emissions in 

East Hampshire. 

6.8. There are risks and constraints associated with all four options, however it is 

considered Option 2, involving ‘Land at Chawton Park Farm’ is best placed to 

mitigate any adverse implications associated with development. The housing 

numbers associated with Option 2 also provide sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid 

change should sites fail to deliver, a requisite of national   policy1. Option 2 is 

therefore the preferred option for the spatial strategy. 

6.9. The preferred option still requires further testing through the plan-making process, 

most notably with respect to transport-related impacts. All of the reasonable 

alternatives also require further work through the sustainability appraisal process. 

However (as noted above), much technical work has already been undertaken, 

giving the Council confidence that the additional work can be progressed whilst 

engaging with communities and stakeholders during the summer and autumn of 

2021 on the preferred option. 

6.10. It should be noted that other options might also be tested through the Sustainability 

Appraisal process, if consultants advise that it is appropriate to do so.  

 

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications – None 

 

7.2. Human Resources Implications – there are no additional staffing requirements from 
the proposed course of action. 
 

7.3. Information Governance Implications – None. 
 

                                            
1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) – Paragraph 11 

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 24th May 2021 

No additional financial implications. 

Page 10



  

                                                                            Page  9 of 11 

 

7.4. Other Resource Implication – None.  

 

7.5. Information Governance Implications – None. 

 

7.6. Other resource implications – None. 

8. Legal Implications – Surinder Atkar, Planning Solicitor (email: 

atkar@havant.gov.uk) 

 

8.1. The preparation of a Local Plan is governed by the Town and Country Planning 

(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). Identifying a preferred 

spatial strategy to feature in the emerging Local Plan ahead of Regulation 19 stage 

would further aid meeting the Council’s statutory duty to prepare an up to date Local 

Plan. Its preparation will be in line with the legal requirements of the current 

planning system. 

  

8.2. Section 19 of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that a 

sustainability appraisal is carried out on the proposals of a Local Plan. The 

Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004 ensure 

that the potential environmental, social and economic effects of development are 

considered through the sustainability appraisal (SA) process. The Council has been 

working with its consultants, AECOM, on a SA of the emerging Local Plan, to 

ensure that the regulations are met during the plan-making process. The Council 

will continue to work towards the production of a SA Report for the Regulation 19 

stage of its emerging Local Plan. Identifying a preferred spatial strategy does not 

affect this process but reflects the emerging work towards the production of the SA 

Report. 

 

8.3. A Habitats Regulations Assessment is being undertaken for the emerging Local 

Plan.  The objective of the assessment is to identify any aspects of the Plan that 

would cause an adverse effect on the integrity of Natura 2000 sites, otherwise 

known as Special Areas of Conservation (SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs), 

(as a matter of Government policy) Ramsar sites, and ‘potential’ sites for any such 

designations, either in isolation or in combination with other plans and projects. The 

HRA process is continuous throughout Local Plan development and is embedded 

by the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, as amended by the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. 

The Council has been working with its consultants, AECOM, on the HRA for the 

emerging Local Plan and will continue to work on the Regulation 19 stage. 

Page 11



  

                                                                            Page  10 of 11 

 

Identifying a preferred spatial strategy does not affect this process but reflects on-

going work, including discussions with Natural England. 

 

9. Risks 

9.1. Each stage of the emerging Local Plan produced to date has followed a statutory 

process. The risks associated with each option is set out above. 

9.2. The key risks shown for not identifying a preferred spatial strategy ahead of 

Regulation 19 stage are: 

 

 Site allocation policies that do not benefit from the input of all interested parties 

to best address the emphasis of design standards promoted in the new 

planning system. 

 Speculative development and planning by appeal with no additional material 

consideration to assist in decision making. 

10. Consultation  

10.1 Members have been briefed on the potential options available for future growth in 

East Hampshire (outside the SDNP) and the likely implications associated with 

each option. This report explores the options available to us in terms of a spatial 

strategy, considering those implications. Members have therefore been briefed and 

shared their initial thoughts on a preferred spatial strategy to feature in the emerging 

Local Plan.  

10.2 To date the Local Plan has undergone two formal Regulation 18 stage 

consultations, with the next formal consultation taking place in April 2022 as part of 

the Pre-submission (Regulation 19) stage. The preferred spatial strategy identified 

within this report, along with site specific policies and supplementary infrastructure 

planning will form part of this formal consultation, which will involve extensive 

engagement with statutory consultees, stakeholders and members of the public. 

10.3 Consultation on the Local Plan will continue in line with the statutory requirements. 

11. Communication 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 20th May 2021 

The Legal Implications section of this report sets out the procedure to be followed in 

establishing the housing allocation for the District under section 19 of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and also identifies other relevant statutory requirements 

to be followed at this stage of the procedure for the Local Plan. 

Page 12



  

                                                                            Page  11 of 11 

 

11.1 Once agreed by the Planning Policy Committee and subsequently approved by Full 

Council, the preferred spatial strategy to feature in the emerging Local Plan will be 

published on the Council’s website with stakeholders contacted to inform them of 

the decision and way forward. In particular, those representing sites chosen to 

deliver future growth will be invited to have more detailed discussions around 

specific policies related to the site. 

11.2  The preparation of the Local Plan is supported by a communications strategy which 

will continue to be updated. 

  

12. Appendices 

12.1. Appendix A - Spatial Strategy: Definition of the Preferred Option and Maps of 

Reasonable Alternatives 

13. Background papers 

13.1. None 

 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

 

Portfolio Holder: Angela Glass (signed off on 26th May 2021) 

Director: Simon Jenkins (signed off on 25th May 2021) 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey (signed off on 26th May 2021)     

Section 151 Officer: Lydia Morrison (signed off by Matthew Tiller obo Lydia Morrison on 24th 
May 2021)    

 

Contact Officer:  

Name: Adam Harvey  

Job Title: Acting Planning Policy Manager   

Telephone: 07341462872  

E-Mail: adam.harvey@easthants.go.uk   

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Spatial Strategy: Definition of the Preferred Option and Maps of Reasonable 
Alternatives 

The preferred option for the emerging Local Plan consists of a range of sites that have been 
promoted for residential, commercial, employment or a mix of uses. The following table identifies 
these sites by name, parish, the land availability assessment (LAA) references and (where relevant) 
the Draft Local Plan (February 2019) references, whilst also identifying the land uses that are 
proposed as part of the preferred option. Maps of the spatial strategy alternatives and “in focus” 
maps showing the preferred option sites in/around the larger settlements of Alton, Whitehill & 
Bordon, Horndean, Liphook and Four Marks & South Medstead are provided after the table. This 
information is for reference and to give members an illustration of how the sites of the preferred 
option are distributed across the Council’s planning area. Please note that sites with planning 
permission granted since 2017 are not shown, but will contribute towards meeting needs. 

 

Site Name Parish LAA Reference Draft Local Plan 
Reference (if 
any) 

Proposed Uses 

Land at Brick Kiln 
Lane and 
Basingstoke Road 

Alton AL-005 SA19 Residential 

Former Coors 
Brewery, Alton 

Alton AL-015 SA18 Mixed 

Windmill House, 
Windmill Lane, 
Alton 

Alton AL-019 - Residential 

21 Winchester 
Road, Alton 

Alton AL-023 - Residential 

Alton Convent 
School, Anstey 
Lane 

Alton AL-031 - Residential 

Alton Convent 
School Car Park 

Alton AL-038 - Residential 

Rogers Court Car 
Park 

Alton AL.039 - Residential 

Land to the east of 
the Paddocks, 
Station Road 

Bentley BEN-014 - Residential 
(Travelling 
Communities) 

Land at Lynch Hill Binstead AL-016 SA22 Commercial/ 
Employment 

Land adjoining 
Northfield Lane 

Chawton CHA-002 SA24 Employment 

Land at Chawton 
Park Farm 

Chawton CHA-005 - Mixed 

Clanfield County 
Farms 

Clanfield CL-002 SA32 Residential 

Land at 131 
Winchester Road 

Four Marks FM-016 - Residential 

Page 15



Site Name Parish LAA Reference Draft Local Plan 
Reference (if 
any) 

Proposed Uses 

Fordlands, 
Brislands Lane 

Four Marks FM-022 - Residential 
(Travelling 
Communities) 

Land rear of 191-
211 Lovedean 
Lane 

Horndean HD-001 SA34 Residential 

Parsonage Farm Horndean HD-002 SA35 Residential 
Chalk Hill Road, 
Horndean 

Horndean HD-008 - Residential 

Land East of 
Horndean,  

Horndean HD-012 SA33 Mixed 

Woodcroft Farm Horndean HD-024 SA37 Residential 
54 Portsmouth 
Road 

Horndean HD-033 - Residential 

Land at Middle 
Common, 
Grayshott Road 

Headley HEA-011 SA7 Residential 
(Travelling 
Communities) 

Land off 
Hollywater and 
Whitehill Road 

Headley HEA-018 SA8 Residential 

Land west of 
Headley Road, 
Liphook 

Liphook LIP-012 SA3 Residential 

Chiltley Farm, 
Liphook 

Liphook LIP-017 SA2 Residential 

Land adjacent to 
Passfield Mill 
Business Centre 

Liphook LIP-024 - Employment 

Milcott Meadow, 
Passfield 

Liphook LIP-025 - Employment 

Land at 38-40 
Station Road 

Liphook LIP-043 - Mixed 

Land rear of 
Woodview Place 
and Timbers 

Medstead MED-004 - Residential 

Land at Oaklands 
House 

Rowlands Castle RC-001 SA39 Residential 

Land north of 
Bartons Road 

Rowlands Castle RC-002 SA40 Residential 

Land south of 
Little Leigh Farm 

Rowlands Castle RC-004 SA41 Residential 

Aurea Norma and 
Builders Yard 

Ropley ROP-002 SA30 (part) Residential 

Land between 
Homeview and 
Wykeham House, 
Petersfield Road 

Ropley ROP-025  Residential 

Page 16



Site Name Parish LAA Reference Draft Local Plan 
Reference (if 
any) 

Proposed Uses 

Land off Hale 
Close 

Ropley ROP-024  Residential 

Former Garrison 
Church 

Whitehill WHI-004 - Residential 

Mill Chase 
Academy and 
Leisure Centre 

Whitehill WHI-005 SA12 Residential 

Bordon Garrison & 
Louisburg 
Expansions 

Whitehill [LAA site 
currently being 
redefined in 
relation to SANG 
capacity issues] 

SA9 (part) Mixed 

Lion Court Whitehill WHI-019 - Employment 
 

Maps of Reasonable Alternatives – whole strategies 

Option 1 

 

  

Page 17



Option 2 (the Preferred Option) 

 

Option 3 

 

Page 18



Option 4 

 

Page 19



Maps of the Preferred Option – “in focus” maps for larger settlements 

Alton & environs 

 

 

Whitehill & Bordon & environs 

 
Page 20



Horndean & environs 

 

 

Liphook & environs 

 

 
Page 21



Four Marks & South Medstead & environs 

 

Page 22



  

                                                                            Page  1 of 6 

 

NON-EXEMPT  

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Council         23 September 2021 

        

Appointment of Independent Persons 

 

FOR RECOMMENDATION  

 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Nick Drew 

Key Decision: No  

Report Number: EHDC/020/ 2021  

1. Purpose 

1.1. Following Standards Committee on 07 September 2021, this report is to enable 

Council to appoint Independent Persons and an Independent Remuneration 

Panel in accordance with statutory provisions.  Section 28(8) (c)(iii) Localism Act 

2011 requires the appointment of Independent Persons to be “approved by a 

majority of the members of the authority”. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1. Members are requested to: 

a. note the recruitment process of the Independent Persons (IPs) 

b. to recommend Full Council approve the appointment of Mr Andrew Kirk, Mr 

David Heck and Mr Peter Moore as Independent Persons as selected by the 

interview panel and detailed in this report 

3. Executive Summary 

3.1. Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to appoint 

at least one Independent Person to assist the Council in promoting and 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



  

                                                                            Page  2 of 6 

 

maintaining high standards of conduct amongst its elected members and town 

and parish councillors. 

3.2. The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

requires an Authority to establish and implement a scheme which provides for the 

payment of allowances in accordance with the Regulations.  To do this, the 

Councils must establish an Independent Remuneration Panel.   

3.3. The councils’ Independent Persons will be appointed to work across both East 

Hampshire District Council and Havant Borough Council and will be consulted on 

the decision to investigate complaints and will form the Independent 

Remuneration Panel. 

4. Additional Budgetary Implications  

None.   

5. Background and relationship to Corporate Strategy and/or Business Plans 

5.1. A review of IRP arrangements was required following resignation of members of 

the IRP and 2 IPs.  This has provided an opportunity to combine the functions of 

the IP and IRP functions and necessitated the recruitment of new Independent 

Persons.   

5.2. The councils Constitution Part 5 – Councillor Allowance Scheme, states that a 

new scheme must be adopted every four years, following a review from an 

Independent Remuneration Panel.  

5.3. The councils Constitution Part 4, Section B – Code of Conduct for Councillors, 

states that the council will appoint at least one Independent Person, whose views 

must be sought by the Council before it takes a decision on an allegation which it 

has decided should be investigated, and whose views can be sought by the 

Council at any other stage. 

5.4. A recruitment process was undertaken that consisted of: 

a. Advertisement on the council social media (Appendix A) 

b. Applicants were asked to complete and submit an application form, which 

was contained within the Application Pack (Appendix B).   

Page 24



  

                                                                            Page  3 of 6 

 

The Application Pack contained: 

 Person Specification 

 Role Description 

 Outline of reasons that persons would be disqualified from 

serving as an Independent Person 

 Application Form 

 Application Declarations 

 

c. Shortlisting was undertaken in line with the requirements of the role detailed 

in the Person Specification by: 

 Jenni Harding, Democratic Services Team Leader 

 Mark Watkins, Interim Legal Team Manager 

 Daniel Toohey, Head of Legal Services 

 

d. Applicants were invited to interview.  The interviews were conducted via 

Teams.  The interview panel members were:  

 Cllr Michael Wilson – Chair of Standards Committee for HBC 

 Cllr Malcolm Johnson – Chair of Standards Committee for EHDC 

 Daniel Toohey – Head of Legal Services 

 

e. The interview panel proposed the following 3 IPs be appointed: 

 Andrew Kirk (re-appointed) 

 David Heck (new appointment) 

 Peter Moore (new appointment) 

6. Options considered 

6.1. Option A – the appointment of the IPs as selected by the interview panel. 

6.2. Option B – to undertake further recruitment.  The proposed appointments as 

currently selected by the interview panel, was the result of 2 rounds of a 

recruitment process as detailed in 5.4 above. 

7. Resource Implications 

7.1. Financial Implications 

7.2. An annual stipend of £1,000 will be paid to each Independent Person to cover 

reimbursement of costs incurred undertaking the IP and IRP roles.  It is 

anticipated that the total of £3,000 / annum will be met from existing budgets. 

Page 25



  

                                                                            Page  4 of 6 

 

 

7.3. Human Resources Implications 

There are no Human Resources Implications as an Independent Person is a 

voluntary role.   

7.4. Information Governance Implications 

All information related to the tasks undertaken by the IPs will be managed in line 

with information governance requirements by Legal and Democratic Services in 

order to protect any personal / confidential identifiable data. 

7.5. Links to Shaping our Future Programme 

None.  

7.6. Other resource implications 

None. 

8. Legal Implications 

8.1. The council is required to appoint at least one IP and have an IRP in place. 

Section 151 Officer comments 

Date: 26 08 21 

This is an independent recommendation with a small cost of £3,000/annum, therefore no 

budget implications currently.  It is anticipated to be within budget. 

Monitoring Officer comments 

Date: 26 08 21 

The role of the independent person is a crucial element of the Council’s governance 

processes. Previous independent persons have recently given notice of retirement and 

this recruitment exercise has been carried out to ensure that the Council has a full 

complement, to engage in and perform necessary tasks, and provide best practice 

governance for the organisation. 

Page 26



  

                                                                            Page  5 of 6 

 

9. Risks 

Failure to have a IPs / IRP in place would result in: 

 the councils’ being in contravention of the Local Authorities (Members’ 

Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 

 the councils’ being unable to undertake a timely independent review of 

councillor allowances as required by the Constitution 

 the councils’ being in contravention of the Localism Act 2011 

10. Consultation  

10.1. This process has been undertaken in consultation with: 

 Legal Services 

 Democratic Services 

 Relevant statutory guidance 

 Chairs of Standards Committees at both EHDC and HBC 

A report will be submitted for Full Council approval in September 2021. 

11. Communication 

No wider communication will be needed other than Full Council approval. 

12. Appendices 

12.1. Appendix A – Advert 

Appendix B – Application Pack  

13. Background papers 

13.1. As above in item 12. 

 

Agreed and signed off by: 

Portfolio Holder: Cllr Nick Drew – 27 08 21 

Director: Lydia Morrison – 27 08 21 

Monitoring Officer: Daniel Toohey  - 26 08 21 

Section 151 Officer: Matthew Tiller – 26 08 21 

Page 27



  

                                                                            Page  6 of 6 

 

Contact Officer  

Name:  Daniel Toohey 

Job Title: Head of Legal Services 

Telephone: 02392 446228 

E-mail: daniel.toohey@havant.gov.uk  

Page 28



Appendix A - Advert 

Appointment of Independent Persons 

The Localism Act 2011 confirmed the Council’s continuing duty to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by members and co-opted members of the authority. 

We are looking for “Independent Persons” to work with the Council to help to ensure 
high standards of conduct in the Council and amongst elected Councillors within Havant 
Borough & East Hampshire District. 

If you think you have the qualities to take on this challenging role, we would like to hear 
from you. 

You should be impartial, have a good standing in the community, and support the 
Council’s goals of being accountable, open, principled, and committed to equality 
opportunities.  Ideally, you will live or work in and around either East Hampshire or 
Havant and understand the area and some of the issues facing it. 

We are unable to consider anyone who is, or has been within the last five years, a 
member, co-opted member or officer of either Havant Borough Council or East 
Hampshire District Council, or any of the Local Parish Councils within the District; or is a 
relative or close friend of a member, co-opted member or officer of either Hampshire 
Borough Council or East Hampshire District Council, or any of the Local Parish Councils 
within the District.  You must be aged 18 or over. 

Independent Persons are entitled to an annual stipend to cover any out of pocket 
expenses in carrying out the duties of the role. 

To find out more, please call XXX, or Email: XXX 
 
Interviews will take place on XXX  

Please contact XXX for an information pack / download, complete and return the 
completed Application Pack via email, or post to XXX, For the Attention Of: XXX 

Closing date is XXX. 

 
 

Page 29

mailto:mark.watkins@havant.gov.uk
mailto:zoey.foakes@brentwood.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

East Hampshire District Council  
 

and  
 

Havant Borough Council 
 
 
 
 
 

RECRUITMENT PACK FOR  
 

APPOINTMENT OF 
 

VOLUNTARY INDEPENDENT PERSONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

East Hampshire District Council and Havant Borough Council 
 
Appointment of three Independent Persons to be consulted on Councillor Code of 
Conduct Complaints and to act as the Council’s Independent Remuneration Panel. 
 
Councillor Complaints 
 
Under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, the Council is required to appoint at least one 
Independent Person to assist the Council in promoting and maintaining high standards of 
conduct amongst its elected members and town and parish councilors. 
 
East Hampshire District Council and Havant Borough Council will appoint three Independent 
Persons, who will be consulted on the decision to investigate complaints and before it makes a 
decision on an investigated complaint. The Independent Person may be consulted on other 
standards matters, including by the Councillor who is subject to an allegation. 
 
Independent Remuneration Panel 
 
The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 requires an Authority 
to establish and implement a scheme which provides for the payment of allowances in 
accordance with the Regulations. 
 
To do this, the Councils must establish an Independent Remuneration Panel.  The Panel must 
produce a report making recommendations as to the payment and amount of all forms of 
allowances, the duties to which special responsibility allowances should attach and whether 
allowances should be index linked.  The Panel is required to make recommendations to the 
Council whenever the Council decides to either revoke or amend its current scheme. 
 
Full details of the role and responsibilities of the Independent Person are included in this 
Recruitment Pack. 
 
An annual stipend of £1,000 will be paid to each Independent Person. 
 
For further details, including the eligibility criteria please visit the Council’s website or contact:- 
 
XXX 
 
The closing date for applications is XXX. An informal discussion, to ascertain suitability, will be 
held on XXX. 
 
 

 
 

Page 32



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

INDEPENDENT PERSON APPOINTED UNDER THE STANDARDS REGIME  
 

PERSON SPECIFICATION 
 

 Essential Desirable 
 

Qualifications:  

 No specific qualifications or background is required however a clear 
commitment to the role and its responsibilities are essential 

 
 
 

 

Knowledge and Skills:  

 A good communicator 

 Enhanced questioning skills 

 A natural problem solver 

 Assertive 

 Inquisitive, open minded and non-judgmental 

 Have a general understanding of the principles behind the Members’ 
Code of Conduct. 

 Have experience of setting remuneration levels in complex 
organisations 

 Awareness of the background to the new Standards Regime 

 Computer Literate  

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Experience: 

 A demonstrable interest in local issues 

 Experience in Committee working. 

 An interest in public service, particularly local government 

 Live and/or work in Hampshire. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Competencies: 

 A person in whose impartiality and integrity the public can have 
confidence. 

 Able to understand and comply with confidentiality requirements 

 Able to make a significant contribution to the work of the Committee 

 Committed to undertaking the background work in preparation for 
meetings 

 To be available to attend and contribute to meetings 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Other Requirements: 

 Able to attend Council offices for meetings and consultations as required through the 
Standards Process 

 Able to attend programmed meetings, ad hoc if required, and devote preparation time for each 
meeting. 

 Able to travel between Councils in order to attend meetings as required 

 Able to access emails and undertake work at home if required 

 Be available for telephone/email consultation  

 Must not currently have and must not enter into any contractual relations with the Council 
under which he/she will gain personally 

 Will have disclosed and agree to continue to disclose to the Council any matter in his/her 
background which, if it became public, might cause the Council to reconsider the appointment. 

 Will not be a member of any political party or have a public profile in relation to political 
activities. 

Page 33



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

INDEPENDENT PERSON 
 

ROLE DESCRIPTION 
 

1. To attend regularly and participate in meetings of any Committee established to deal with the 
conduct of Councillors, including consultative meetings/informal dispute resolutions with the 
Monitoring Officer and/or Councillors [Note:- meetings may be held during the evening as well 
as during the day and may require travelling between Councils. Consultations may take the 
form of a telephone conversation or email correspondence]. 

 
2. To participate as an independent person in hearings in relation to complaints of Councillor 

misconduct under the Code of Conduct. 
 

3. To actively promote ethics and standards within the District, Borough, Town and Parish 
Councils within the County. 

 
4. To develop and apply knowledge of the Code of Conduct in relation to matters alleging 

breaches of the Code of Conduct. 
 

5. To assist in the preparation of reports and determination of allegations of Councillor misconduct 
in conjunction with the Monitoring Officer and Council Members.  

 
6. To analyse and exercise fair and impartial opinion on conduct issues and to set standards of 

ethical behaviour. 
 

7. To provide a view on the governance of the Council (both at Principal and Parish levels) and 
the conduct of their Councillors from an external perspective  

 
8. To develop a sound understanding of the ethical and wider regulatory framework  

 
9. To be aware of the views of the local community on ethical standards and to reflect those in 

carrying out the role. 
 

10. Be prepared to undertake training and to participate in training events organised by the Council 
to promote awareness of the Code of Conduct  

 
11. To attend meetings of the Council and civic and other functions in order to raise the profile of 

ethics and standards within the authority. 
 

12. To review and provide comment on the Council’s process of mayoral expense provision. 
 

13. Attend meetings of the Independent Remuneration Panel to consider information in connection 
with the Members’ Allowances Scheme. 

 
14. To formulate a view and make recommendations to the Council as to any appropriate changes 

to the Members’ Allowances Scheme, as laid down in the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 and Section 7, Superannuation Act 1972, namely:- 

 
(a) the level of basic allowance for all Councillors;  
(b) categories of special responsibility for which a special responsibility allowance should be 

paid and the levels of those allowances; 
(c) the rate of childcare / dependency allowance; 
(d) Travel & Subsistence Allowance; and 
(e) any annual uplift. 
 

15. To sit on the Independent Persons Panel, if required as and when, to hear, consider, ask 
questions and comment in respect of Statutory Officer discipline or grievance, and to prepare a 
report on same. 

Page 34



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

 
Persons will be disqualified from serving as an Independent Person if they:  

1. Are an elected Councillor of any Local Authority; 

2. Are employed or appointed by East Hampshire District Council or Havant Borough Council; 

3. Are a senior employee (in a politically restricted post) of another local authority;  

4. Are the holder of any position within a political party at local, regional or national level;  

5. Are the subject of a bankruptcy restrictions order or interim order;  

6. Have been convicted in the last 5 years of an offence with a sentence of imprisonment 

(whether suspended or not) for a period of not less than 3 months without the option of a 

fine;  

7. Are in debt to or in dispute with either East Hampshire District Council or Havant Borough 

Council; or  

8. Are a relative or personal friend of an elected member of either East Hampshire District 

Council or Havant Borough Council 

 
 
  

Page 35



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

APPLICATION FOR POSITION OF INDEPENDENT PERSON  
 

 

 

1. Personal Details 
 
Name:   
 
Address:   
 
 
 
Post Code:   
  
 
Contact Details:   
 
Daytime Telephone Number:   
 
E-mail address:   
 

Rel e  2, Qualifications  
(Please list in particular any qualifications which you think are relevant to the  
position of Independent Person) 

( 
Pl 
 

Page 36



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Yes No 

4. Please provide any additional information you may wish to give in support of 
your application:   
 
 

3. Why do you wish to be considered for appointment as Independent Person 
and what particular attributes do you believe you would bring to the role?   
 

Page 37



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.  I confirm that, I… Yes No 

Am able to attend Council offices for meetings and consultations as required through 
the Standards Process 

  

Am able to attend programmed meetings, ad hoc if required, and devote preparation 
time for each meeting. 

  

Am able to travel between Councils in order to attend meetings as required   

Am able to access emails and undertake work at home if required   

Am available for telephone/email consultation   

Do not currently have and must not enter into any contractual relations with the 
Council under which I will gain personally 

  

Have disclosed and agree to continue to disclose to the Council any matter in my 
background which, if it became public, might cause the Council to reconsider the 
appointment. 

  

Am not a member of any political party or have a public profile in relation to political 
activities. 

  

5. Criminal Convictions and Cautions 

Have you ever received a caution, including conditional  
Cautions, or been convicted by a Court of any offence or  
been reprimanded? Please see further information on  
spent and unspent convictions at the end of the application form.  
 
If yes please give details and dates of any convictions (excluding driving offences)) 
 

YES 
 

NO 
 

6. References will be taken up for all applicants who are invited for interview 
 
1.       2.  
  

 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name 

Telephone Telephone 

Address Address 

Name 

Note: This does not apply to convictions which are spent in accordance with the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974. 
 

Page 38



Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

I wish to apply to be an Independent Person. 
 

In submitting this application, I declare that:- 
 

 I am not and have not during the past five years been a member or officer of the 
District or Borough Council. 

 

 I am not related to, or a close friend of, any Member or Officer of the District of 
Borough Council. 

 

 I am not currently an Officer or Member of any other relevant authority (this 
includes parish, borough, district, county and unitary council and Police and Fire 
Authorities. 

 

 I am not actively engaged in local party-political activity. 
 

 I understand that this is a voluntary role which attracts an annual stipend of £1,000 
to cover costs incurred.  I will not be an employee of either East Hampshire District 
Council or Havant Borough Council and confirm that I therefore not do not have 
the rights of employees or workers for the two authorities.  

 
 

Signed:   

 

 
Please return this application form by XXX to XXX with a subject title: Independent 
Person, or addressed to XXX 
 

Please find our Privacy Policy:  https://www.easthants.gov.uk/privacy-policy 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dated: 

Page 39

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/privacy-policy


Appendix B – Application Pack 

 

Spent and unspent convictions 

A criminal record will not necessarily be a bar to obtaining a position.  Declaring a 

criminal conviction will not be taken into account unless relevant to the position.  

 

Convictions that are unspent 

 Unspent convictions will come back on all levels of criminal record check (basic, 

standard and enhanced). 

 Offences which will never be considered as unspent can by the Home Office are set out 

here: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_d

ata/file/756791/List_of_offences_that_will_never_be_filtered_PDF_.pdf 

 

Convictions that are spent 

 Spent convictions and cautions will not come back on a basic criminal record check. 

Convictions become spent over a period of time depending upon the offence.  For a list of 

rehabilitation periods please refer to this guidance document: 

https://3bx16p38bchl32s0e12di03h-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-

content/uploads/2017/05/Spent-poster_2017-for-web.pdf 

 Some spent cautions and convictions are removed from standard or enhanced checks if 

they meet a set of technical rules known as filtering. If your caution or conviction is now 

filtered, it will not show up on these checks. 

 Most spent convictions and cautions will still appear on standard or enhanced checks.  The 

Council will assess convictions against the role when making a recruitment decision.  

 Spent convictions and cautions will stay on your police record – they are not deleted. 

 

For further information relating to your personal circumstance please ensure you check your 

query with https://www.criminalrecordsservices.com/dbs-check/what-is-the-difference-between-

spent-and-unspent-convictions/ or https://hub.unlock.org.uk/disclosure-calculator/  before 

completing this form. 

 

Page 40

https://hub.unlock.org.uk/checks
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756791/List_of_offences_that_will_never_be_filtered_PDF_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/756791/List_of_offences_that_will_never_be_filtered_PDF_.pdf
https://hub.unlock.org.uk/knowledgebase/basic-disclosure/
https://3bx16p38bchl32s0e12di03h-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Spent-poster_2017-for-web.pdf
https://3bx16p38bchl32s0e12di03h-wpengine.netdna-ssl.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Spent-poster_2017-for-web.pdf
https://hub.unlock.org.uk/filtering
https://hub.unlock.org.uk/knowledgebase/retention-deletion-police-records/
https://www.criminalrecordsservices.com/dbs-check/what-is-the-difference-between-spent-and-unspent-convictions/
https://www.criminalrecordsservices.com/dbs-check/what-is-the-difference-between-spent-and-unspent-convictions/
https://hub.unlock.org.uk/disclosure-calculator/


Leader and Corporate Strategy Portfolio – Cllr. Richard Millard 

 

Corporate Performance  
 
Following consideration by Audit Committee, the East Hampshire Quarter 1 
Performance Report will be published on the Authority’s website. Headline 
achievements for this quarter are: 
 

 We continued to help more than 600 local businesses by distributing Covid-
related support grants as the country came out of lockdown. 

 Planning permission has been granted for the Havant Thicket Reservoir which 
will safeguard water supply in the borough for decades to come, as well as 
providing a recreational asset for local residents to enjoy 

 We pledged almost £1 million to help make the Whitehill and Bordon Health Hub 
a reality. 

 The local elections in May were run smoothly despite the additional Covid-19 
safety requirements 

 The mobilisation phase of Shaping our Future has been completed, following the 
all member briefings, overview and scrutiny meetings and approval of the 
business case and associated resources by Cabinet. 
 

It does need to be noted that, due to nationally recognised issues with driver 
shortages, increasingly significant parts of some waste collection rounds are not 
being carried out to schedule. This has started to impact on residents, as reflected in 
the latest report. Plans are already in train, to address this. 
 
Environmental Services 
 
As detailed above, we are continuing to operate Garden Waste collections although 
they are currently running behind schedule. Norse are providing additional 
resources, including weekend working, wherever possible to catch up with the 
delayed collections and we are hoping to see these numbers fall over the coming 
weeks. We will keep the situation under close review especially as we enter the 
autumn season when Covid and other illness may increase.  
 
Residents are encouraged to continue to leave their bins in their usual collection 
place, log their missed bins via EHDC’s website: https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-
collections and sign up to https://my.easthants.gov.uk/ for regular updates. 
 
Leisure 
 
The Leisure contract continues to deliver impressive metrics from its recovery. 
Currently, performance is exceeding the most optimistic predictions from the 
recovery modelling.  
  
Monthly membership subscriptions are back to pre-pandemic levels. The recovery of 
the membership base is driving increased attendance and income generation.   
  
Month on Month attendances are currently growing at 8% and have surpassed pre-
pandemic baselines. The Swim school program is now delivering almost 3,000 
lessons per week over the contract. 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-collections
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-collections
https://my.easthants.gov.uk/


EHDC, with our Partners at Everyone Active and other stakeholders, has developed 
the ‘East Hampshire Locality programme’. The project aims to address health 
inequalities through partnership working to create sustainable change. It is funded 
through a successful bid by the operator to access funds from the Additional Roles 
Reimbursement Scheme (ARRS) administered by the Primary Care Network (PCN). 
 
EHDC is leading this way with this pilot. It is the first model to be developed with a 
leisure operator following the pandemic. The pilot will go live in East Hampshire in 
October. There are plans to replicate the model and roll it out across 13 other local 
authorities in the South East. 
 
The New WH&B leisure centre hosted a Family open day on Saturday 11th 
September. The event was the first opportunity to celebrate the success of a new 
fantastic facility delivered in the most challenging of circumstances. 
 
Whitehill & Bordon Update 
 
Following the 1 July meeting where Cabinet agreed to contribute nearly £1M of 
developers’ contributions and Eco-Town fund, District Council officers continue to 
work with project partners to deliver the planned new Whitehill & Bordon health hub.   
 
A new drive-in cinema opened in mid-July in the former parade square in front of the 
Sandhurst Building which has been decorated with public art.  Together with the new 
leisure centre this brings another facility to add vibrancy and improve the leisure 
opportunities in the town.  
 
In addition to the Town Centre, new houses continue to be built, the next stages of 
the green loop (a 7km walking & cycling route around the town) are being installed 
as well as wayfinding markers and signs to help people navigate the route. 
 
EH Commercial Services  
 
The easing of Government restrictions has allowed the Company to transition back 
form Covid Marshal work to Enforcement.   I would like to take this opportunity to 
publicly thank the Company for their work as Covid Marshals.  Their ability to adapt 
quickly and skills in engaging residents in difficult circumstances and to supporting 
local businesses has been exemplary. 
    
The Company is now focussed on its core services and is on track for a solid 
recovery form Covid.  The prospects for growth are excellent.  Two Partners are 
looking to extend, we are now delivering services with Adur and Worthing, and are in 
discussions with three potential new partners.  The company continues to innovate.   
 
The first revenue from Courts costs has been received for our new prosecution 
service.  Working with Petersfield Town Council, we have issued our first penalty for 
littering using video evidence and are providing additional environmental patrols for 
Alton Town Council.  The Council’s reputation as an innovative, collaborative, trusted 
partner continues to grow. 

 

 

 
 

Page 42



Deputy Leader, Welfare and Community Engagement – Cllr. Julie Butler 
 
 

Charity Walk For Peace 
 
Charity Walk For Peace took place on Saturday, after being cancelled in 2020. We 
were very lucky with the weather and over 40 walkers took part including 
representatives from the chosen charities, Damian Hinds and Councillors. Along with 
the main walking event, some walkers chose to do a route near where they lived to 
avoid large crowds etc. It was a great event and glad it was able to happen this year, 
my thanks to everyone involved. We are now planning Charity Walk for Peace 2022. 
 
Community Cop 26 Event  
 
We are working with Damian Hind’s team and Cllr Mocatta to organise the CC26 
Climate Change event on 8th October taking place at the Alton Maltings. We have a 
number of guest speakers including Lord Deben as well as three local Action Groups 
who will talk on key subject areas of buildings; transport; and land use and 
agriculture. 
As well as these presentations we have an exhibition fair with a variety of local eco 
groups and organisations, as well as an electric vehicle display so guests can learn 
more about electric bikes and cars. The event is free, and guests can book to attend 
via Eventbrite. 
 
EHDC Community Chest Lottery Fund 
 
On 1st September the first round of EHDC's Community Chest Lottery Fund was 
launched! Good Causes have until 30th September to apply for grants of up to 
£1000 for a Community project. There is approximately £8000 up that can be applied 
for. All applications will be taken to the Grants & Awards Cabinet Liaison Panel for 
decision. 
 
Grants Dashboards 
 
The Community Team will soon be publishing their Community Grants Dashboards 
on the EHDC website. These are user friendly dashboards which show where the 
Supporting Communities Fund and Cllr Grants funding is being spent. The 
dashboards show who has spent what, where, and on what type of activity or project. 
The dashboards are an upgraded version of the Word tables which are currently 
used. 
 
Pinewood Village Hall 
 

Cabinet have approved the release of £792,000 of developer contributions for the 
conversion of Pinewood Village Hall into 10 'pods' for homeless people.  This project 
is a UK first, supporting both the Council's effort to address homelessness and the 
climate emergency.  Work is expected to start on site in the Autumn and complete 
mid-2022. 

The Affordable Housing Cabinet Liaison Panel is proving to be a great success, with 
all members highly engaged with the work underway in the Housing Team.  A sub-
group has formed and met several times to set the priorities for the Housing 
Strategy, which will evolve over the coming months. 

Page 43



 
Governance and Legal – Cllr. Nick Drew 

 
 

Health and Safety (H&S) 
No issues, risks or concerns to report. All monitoring of H&S processes and 
contractors continues to ensure compliance. 
 
Further review of office space has been undertaken and covid controls continue 
where needed.  
 
The Joint Health and Safety Committee meeting took place in July 2021, no issues 
to report, minutes are available on Skoop+. 
 
The Councils Out of Hours service at EHDC and HBC, continues to offer support, 
advice and guidance to members of the public and partners when the offices are 
closed.  

 
Business Continuity (BCP) 
No issues, risks or concerns to report. 
 
Review of P1/P2 critical functions has been undertaken to ensure there is sufficient 
resilience in the council to continue to deliver these services if reasonable worst case 
scenario re staffing levels was realised. 
 
New Corporate and Service plans templates have been created to reflect the service 
changes and feedback during the pandemic, both now reflect the command and 
control protocols.  
 
Potential for cyber security threat has increased. A review is underway to consider 
how this risk is best managed to ensure the resilience of IT systems and the 
continuity of service delivery. 
 
Emergency Planning 
Annual training programme has taken place for the Emergency Control Centre staff. 
New roles and arrangements have been introduced within the (ECC) across the 
County to streamline and simplify the approach.  
 
Annual exercise to test ECC staffing to take place during September. 
 
We are reviewing the Adverse Weather Plan in conjunction with several other teams 
in advance of winter weather e.g. snow. Flooding guidance booklets are being 
reviewed and updated.   
 
Strategic HR and OD  
  
Transformation 
HR and OD work activity continues for the transformation programme. Focus now is 
on the development of a pack of “OD tools” for heads of service to use alongside the 
toolkits being developed by the team working under Vicki Potts and Sue Parker.  We 
are also working on the development of a performance scorecard in conjunction with 
Matt Goodwin and on the Spans and Layers project commissioned from the LGA. 
 

Page 44



 
Future Working 
The trial went live on 19th July. Weekly stats on usage are monitored which indicate 
that building usage is low. Activity is underway to explore how to create usable 
collaboration spaces for teams. A further survey will go out to staff in October 2021. 
 
Employee Wellbeing  
The third employee wellbeing survey closed, and feedback went to EB prior to 
discussion with Unison and further circulation.  Several key measures have been 
identified are being put in place to support staff and have been added to the 
Wellbeing Action Plan.  Employee wellbeing continues to be prioritised in light of 
both covid 19 and the future working styles trial. 
  
Learning and Development  
The e-Learning system has been relaunched and staff and councillors are reminded 
of the mandatory courses and timescales for completion. Work also continues on the 
development of a digital L&D passport which will apply to all staff and will set out the 
requirements for L&D on an annual basis. 
 
Performance Management 
Implementation of a revised approach to performance management has been 
developed by the HR advisory team, following approval by Executive 
Board.  Implementation will be supported by learning and development opportunities 
in relation to performance management provided by our L&D providers and by the in-
house team who are presenting a number of focused “bite-size” sessions both live 
and on-line.  This supports the PDR and talent modules within the existing My View 
software package. 
 
Recruitment 
The team are working with the supplier and supported by the Communications team 
to launch the new recruitment and applicant tracking system later in September. This 
will enhance the digital use of recruitment processes and streamline the way 
recruitment and onboarding is delivered. 
 
Equality and Inclusion  
The team are supporting the Councils' lead officer to ensure we have a robust 
workforce plan in place to dovetail with the overall strategy.  
 
Communications and Marketing  
 
-Charity Walk for Peace promotion   
  
- COP26 East Hampshire promotion – branding, press releases, webpage, online 
event sign-up   
  
- Design for digital-based bin calendars   
  
-Developed branding for the Creative Footsteps festival – as well as overall 
promotion of this   
  
-’Welcome Back to East Hants’ brochure designed and written – which will be 
distributed to homes  
  

Page 45



 
Website update:   
Since the start of this year, the website has had:  
  

 More than 210,000 visits  
 Searching and commenting on planning applications was the most 
viewed page on the website  
 Bin collections was the most viewed service area  
 The website was mainly viewed from London, Alton and Petersfield  
 53% of users access the website from a mobile device – mainly using 
an Apple iPhone.  

  
Website changes  
There are on average 30 updates made to the website each day to ensure it is 
relevant and up to date.   
  
Coronavirus  
  
The website has been updated to reflect the legal restrictions being lifted (step 4 of 
the roadmap). Although restrictions have lifted, there is still a strong emphasis on 
managing the risk to ourselves and others. In the top six boxes, we have created 
new icons and links to ‘coronavirus testing’ and the ‘vaccination programme.’   
  
The ‘coronavirus testing’ page includes information such as the different types 
of tests available and the reasons to get tested.   
  
The ‘vaccination programme’ page includes how to book your vaccine and how to 
avoid scams.  
  
There are also many links to the GOV.UK website and the NHS website which 
provides additional information.  
  
Supporting Afghan evacuees  
  
A new page has been created on the website to outline the council’s role in 
helping Afghan evacuees - https://www.easthants.gov.uk/supporting-afghan-
evacuees  
  
Our housing team is doing everything it can to work with partners to help house 
Afghan families.  
  
Welcome back campaign  
  
The welcome back campaign has been launched on the website to support residents 
and visitors returning to the district’s high streets and visitor 
areas - https://www.easthants.gov.uk/welcome-back.  
  
Accessibility update  
New accessibility regulations came into force in September 2020 which ensures the 
website can be used by as many people as possible.   
The last accessibility test was on Tuesday 24 August 2021. The test was carried out 
by Site Improve who gave this website an accessibility score of 94/100.  
  

Page 46

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/supporting-afghan-evacuees
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/supporting-afghan-evacuees
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/welcome-back
https://siteimprove.com/


 
Social media  
Since the end of the first quarter of 2021-22, our social media channels have 
continued to grow.  
  
Now that we are in level four of the coronavirus guidelines, we have been posting 
more business as usual content. During the summer holidays, we have been sharing 
information about local events, for example the upcoming COP26 event and the 
Charity Walk for Peace.  
  
Our most popular post on Facebook during August was about the volunteers who 
have planted wildflowers on the grassy verges off Butts Road 
and Borovere Gardens. This post was seen by more than 29k people and received 
112 likes.  

 
Legal & Democratic Services 

Covid-19 - Legal Services’ team members have now returned to the office on a part 
time basis; they are continuing to work from home for the remainder. 
  
Permanent Recruitment – 3 new team members have been recruited to fill vacancies 
for permanent solicitor roles in the areas of property, planning & litigation. The first of 
these is to start next week and thereafter the remaining two in October and 
November respectively.  
  
I would like to welcome to Democratic Services Emma Carlyle, who is on 
Secondment for a year.  Emma has worked for the council for 5 years and comes to 
us from the Executive Team.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 47



Planning – Cllr. Angela Glass 
 

Planning Policy Committee 
 
Following the call for sites last year and the Large Sites Consultation process, ten 
sites were submitted by landowners for consideration as suitable, sustainable, 
locations for large scale future development.  The District Council has to consider all 
sites that are put forward. 
 
On Tuesday 6th July, the Planning Policy Committee which comprises ten members 
from the three main parties, following a long debate, approved the Spatial Strategy 
strategic choice of Chawton Park Farm, Alton, (Option 2), among other Options, as 
the preferred site for future development of up to 1,200 homes. This choice will go 
forward in the Draft Local Plan. This site will be Recommended for Approval at the 
next Council meeting on the 23rd September. In addition to Chawton Park Farm, 
there is additional land which is suitable for development, for up to 819 homes, which 
has been identified at the Garrison site at Whitehill and Bordon.  This site was 
originally chosen to take the bulk of the identified need during the Plan period, but 
subsequently, following consultation with Natural England, it was recognised that 
sufficient mitigation, (SANG), could not be provided, which led to the reduction in 
housing capacity and the necessity to choose an additional site for development. 
Consultation work on all the identified Option sites will continue over the next 
months, ahead of the Regulation 19 consultation process which is due next Spring. 
 
Local Plan Working Group 
 
This cross-party group continues to meet on a regular basis in order to discuss 
progress on the Draft Local Plan, and to receive new information from Planning 
Policy officers about the Draft Local Plan 2017-2038.  The Option choices for large 
development sites were considered by the LPWG prior to identifying the final four 
choices which were brought the Planning Policy Committee. 
 
Development Management 
 
The team continue to be very busy, with only a small reduction in the number of 
minor, mainly householder applications being registered. Site visits by officers have 
recommenced subject to risk assessment. 
 
On the 1st August there were changes to planning legislation.  The first is a new 
requirement for buildings over 18 metres, or 5 storeys in height, to submit a fire risk 
strategy as part of the National Requirements for applications. The second are 
changes to the General Permitted Development Order (GPDO) under which all parts 
of the new Class E use class, can change to residential with just a prior approval.  
Class E now replaces Class A1, A2, and A3, B1 and B2, and D1 and D2, Business 
classes. Planning permission would still be required for the alteration of the external 
appearance of a building. 
 
Planning Committee 
 
The next Planning Committee is due to take place on Thursday 14th October.. 

 
 
 

Page 48



Finance – Cllr. Charles Louisson 
 

Finance 

Exchequer services cover processing of invoices, purchase orders and cash 
handling, which is a shared services with Havant Borough Council. We are in the 
process of reviewing processes that are currently in place to improve these services 
and streamline efficiency.  

Work to finalise the financial outturn and Statement of Accounts for 2020/21 is 
underway. Due to volume of transactions associated with grants processed during 
the pandemic as well as Covid-related delays in the initial phase of accounts 
preparation we are unlikely to meet the statutory reporting deadline for accounts, and 
we are working with our external auditors to complete this as soon as possible.  

We are also reviewing pandemic related risks to the 2021/22 budget and this will be 
reported back to Councillors and built into the 2022/23 budget setting process.  

 
Business Grants 
 
During the coronavirus pandemic, East Hampshire District Council issued nearly £46 
million in grants to more than 2,600 local businesses. The grants were delivered over 
12 different schemes set up between March 2020 and July 2021. 

The Council has successfully applied for further grant funding of £1,100,000 for its 
discretionary scheme (Additional Restrictions Grant), having fully spent the original 
allocations of £3.3 million. 
 
Council Tax 

 

We continue to achieve excellent results for the collection of Council Tax. Results for 
2020/21 show that EHDC is the tenth best performing council nationally, an 
improvement of one position over 2019/20.  

We are currently working on the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) annual comparison 
between Council Tax Records that hold a single person discount and the Electoral 
Roll. This is a national scheme that most authorities have signed up to and EHDC 
has been involved in the scheme for over 8 years.  

The NFI highlights other individuals registered to vote at a property where the 
Council Tax Records shown a 25% single person discount has been granted. 
Enquiries are made by way of a review form as to why these individuals are linked to 
the address. In many cases the address is used for voting purposes where the 
individual lives abroad, or it is a Student living away during term time. 

The matching of both registers enables us to ensure that our records are up to date, 
accurate and highlights those accounts where a single person discount needs to be 
cancelled. 

Throughout the review we will regularly update the NFI website producing data as to 
how many searches are carried out, how many single person discounts are 
cancelled as well as their value. During the 2020/2021 financial year we carried out 
over 770 reviews with 102 single person discounts being cancelled which resulted in 
an extra £21,700 Council Tax falling due. 

 
 

Page 49



Customer Services 
 

Reception re-opened to the public in June.  The number of visitors has remained 
low, on average 5 per day, the majority of which have either wanted signatures for 
proof of life for their pension, to drop off documents, make a cheque payment, or 
they have come to us in error (e.g. wanting lateral flow tests, wanting the Taro or the 
Festival Hall).  We have made use of the virtual meeting room once in order that a 
customer could meet with a Benefits Officer face to face.  The virtual solution worked 
well. 

 
Insight 
 

The third wave of the COVID-19 residents survey was conducted over the summer 
and the results are now being analysed. The data – including details on mental and 
physical health, trust and understanding of COVID messaging and impacts upon 
personal finance – is currently being presented to relevant colleagues to inform the 
Council’s work moving forward.  

We also continue to provide economic dashboard updates to the Business and 
Economy Recovery Group on key statistics such as the local and national labour 
markets, UK GDP and business outlook, which continue to show signs of recovery. 
For instance, the claimant count rate in East Hampshire has reduced below levels 
seen in March 2020 for the first time since the start of the pandemic and the 
numbers of residents claiming furlough support is at its lowest level since the 
scheme was introduced, reflecting a general trend of optimism in the national 
economic outlook.  

We will continue to monitor these factors, especially with the end of the national 
furlough scheme in September and feed this data to the above group to inform 
forward actions.  

 
Elections – Registration 
 
We have started our annual canvass writing to every property in East Hampshire to 
make sure the register is up to date ready to publish on 1st December.  
 

The new way of running the canvass means that the number of forms that must be 
returned by households is reduced which cuts down on both paper and postage 
costs.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 
Community Development, Placemaking & Infrastructure – Cllr. Robert Mocatta 

 
 

Environmental Services  
 
Waste services 
 

The ongoing difficulties in crewing refuse collection vehicles continue nationally and 
locally and it seems unlikely there will be a quick solution to them.  

 

We are continuing to operate Garden Waste collections unlike many councils, 
although because of the statutory and public health need to focus on refuse and 
recycling it is the first to be affected when there are staffing shortages. Garden 
Waste collections are currently running behind schedule in East Hampshire. Norse 
are providing short term additional resources, including weekend working, wherever 
possible to catch up with the delayed collections and are medium term resourcing 
improvements.  

 

We will keep the situation under close review going into the autumn when Covid and 
other illness may increase.  

 
EHDC has provided some additional resource to assist Norse with the catch up on 
outstanding bin delivery numbers and we are hoping to see these numbers fall over 
the coming weeks.  
 
Residents are encouraged to continue to leave their bins in their usual collection 
place and to only log their missed bins via EHDC’s website where only their bin has 
been missed after a collection has taken place: https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-
collections and sign up to https://my.easthants.gov.uk/ for regular updates. 
 
 
Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleaning 
 
Grass cutting is continuing throughout the District. NSE are currently on the 4th cut of 
the season. Progress for each cut is still taking longer than usual this year due to the 
length of grass, however with this drier, warmer weather we are currently 
experiencing we are hoping the grass growth will steady and the crews will be able 
to make better progress.  
 
Hedge cutting and shrub bed maintenance has started and the crews are working 
their way around the District.   
 
Street cleaning service have been continuing as normal with no service issues to 
report.  
 
The council is currently working with Norse South East, Hampshire County Council, 
Chevron TM and Highways England to schedule in and plan the next litter pick of the 
A3 and A31.  
 

 

Page 51

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-collections
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/bin-collections
https://my.easthants.gov.uk/


 
 

Place-Making Update September 2021 

I am pleased to report continued good progress with place making projects across the 
district and ongoing liaison amongst all tiers of local government to support delivery of 
important place making projects: 

 East Hampshire District Council (EHDC) is working in partnership with 
Hampshire County Council (HCC), Network Rail (NR) and South Western 
Railway (SWR) to deliver the Alton Station Forecourt Enhancement Project 
using developer contributions and SWR funding.  We are currently obtaining 
property, telecoms and landlord approvals. We anticipate starting construction 
in Spring 2022. 

 The redevelopment of the former Molson Coors brewery site in Alton 
progresses with demolition work well underway. The Development Liaison 
Panel meets regularly and coordination continues on the car park works at 
Manor Car Park and the Community Hub between the District Council, Alton 
Town Council and Hampshire County Council and CALA. 

 The District Council, Hampshire County Council, Petersfield Town Council and 
South Downs National Park Authority continue to work together on a list of 
priority transport and travel projects for improving pedestrian safety and 
promoting active travel in Petersfield. Currently at pre-feasibility stage to outline 
the scope with consultant team and hope to proceed with workshops later this 
year.  

 The Land East of Horndean site is still awaiting completion of the S106 legal 
agreement. The S106 Agreement negotiations still are being progressed on 
Havant Thicket and the stakeholder groups have started.  

 Work continues across various teams in the council, plus at all levels of local 
government within the district, to carry out the next stage of the government’s 
re-opening road map, the “Welcome Back Fund”. This is aimed at welcoming 
people back to our high streets, tourist attractions and green spaces. This 
includes helping to fund the Creative Footsteps literary festival in East 
Hampshire (2nd to 10th October), as well as other potential projects. 
Meanwhile, the retail reports by Heartflood, the consultant commissioned to 
carry out business engagement work earlier in the year, are in the process of 
being finalised with a view to publish in October.  

 
 
 
Climate Change & Environment  – Cllr. Robert Mocatta 

 
EHDC is planning for the local COP26 on 8th October to be held at the Maltings, Alton. 
We have confirmed Lord Deben as keynote speaker. The event will include 
presentations from our three panels, all chaired by local residents and involving EHDC 
residents, businesses and community groups like ACAN and PeCAN. The event will 
be part of EHDC’s “let’s talk” programme, and is a significant community involvement. 
We are encouraging residents to attend either in person or virtually. Full details are 
on: 
COP26 East Hampshire | East Hampshire District Council (easthants.gov.uk) 

 
 
 

Page 52

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/cop26-east-hampshire


Economic Development and Rural Affairs – Cllr. Ken Moon 
 

Apprenticeships  
 
The Council’s apprenticeship grant scheme continues to receive applications from 
businesses keen to support local people into local jobs. Six apprenticeships have 
been secured this year with a further 3 applications pending. The scheme has 
proved popular with local businesses, especially SMEs and is a key part of the 
council’s priority to support young people into work. 
 

Jobs Fair 

We are currently working with DWP to hold another virtual jobs fair on 4 October for 
Havant & East Hampshire residents, after the extremely successful event held October 
2020. The Havant and EH job fairs held last year had the highest participation level in 
the West of England region.  

This is a key opportunity to connect local job seekers with local vacancies and further 
supports the council’s focus on supporting young people.  

 
Creative Footsteps Literary Festival - 2nd to 10th October 2021 
 
As part of the Welcome Back Fund programme, the Economy Team (working closely 
with Communications and GIS) is co-ordinating a Literary Festival in October to 
encourage people to continue to visit the beautiful places across East Hampshire as 
the seasons change. The focus is on the area's literary heritage, with walks and talks 
taking place every day.  
 
For more information, and to access a map of self-guided walks please visit: 
https://www.easthants.gov.uk/creative-footsteps. 
 
 
Rebel Business School 
 
Just a reminder to Councillors that the Rebel Business School (formerly Pop Up 
Business School) will be delivering an online course to East Hampshire residents 
and businesses from 18th to 22nd October 2021. The course provides training in all 
aspects of starting and running a business, including digital skills and e-commerce. 
This follows a highly successful course delivered last year which a high level of 
participation across the district. This is being delivered in partnership with Havant 
BC, New Forest DC and Waverley BC and is part of the Council’s economic recovery 
programme.  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 53

https://www.easthants.gov.uk/creative-footsteps


Neighbourhood Quality – Cllr. Ingrid Thomas 
 
 

Parking 
 
September brings the start of a new school year and a new focus for the Parking 
team. CEOs will be working closely with local schools to address parking issues at 
drop off and collection times. 
Schools will be contacted by the team to better understand any issues that they may 
experience during the course of the academic year. This will then inform the work 
undertaken going forward. 
The team will be taking a phased approach, methodically working across the district 
with local schools. To feed into this work, the Parking Service would welcome any 
local information that councillors may have regarding schools in their ward. If you 
would like to make contact the email address is seniorceo@easthants.gov.uk 
  
Traffic Management 
 
Progressing through the TROs  
Have completed the guidance notes for Councillors on the TRO programme (no 
feedback from Councillors as yet)  
Continue to have positive meetings with Hampshire County Council regarding the 
Agency Agreement.  
 
 
Community Safety 
  
Work continues on the Public Space Protection Order and progress is positive. The 
final draft is now with our legal team. 
  
A small number of enquiries have been received more recently, from parish and 
town councils, and the team continue to liaise with stakeholders to work through the 
issues raised and provide clarity with regards to what the Order covers. 
  
Environmental Health 
  
With COVID restrictions lifted the services are working towards addressing the 
backlog of work accumulated due to the challenges and additional responsibilities 
imposed by the pandemic.  We are producing recovery plans to outline our 
methodology, and trying to recruit to vacant posts to ensure we have the resource 
necessary.     
 

 
 
 

 

Page 54

mailto:seniorceo@easthants.gov.uk

	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Previous Minutes
	6 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Spatial Strategy Preferred Option
	AppendixASpatialStratReport

	7 Cabinet and Committee Recommendations
	Appendix A - Advert - Appointment of IP Report for Standards Committee
	Appendix B - Independent Person Application Pack for Standards Committee Report

	8 Portfolio Holder Reports to Council

